Town of Chebeague Island
Planning Board

Minutes
Monday June 9" 2025 @ 6:00 PM

Attendance: Planning Board Members: Paul Belesca, Aaron Julien, Kyle Koerber and members
of the public.

1) Call to Order - The meeting of the Town of Chebeague Planning Board was called to
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Island Hall for the purpose of holding public hearings on the
following applications:

a. Shoreland Zoning Application on behalf of Kyle P. Legg for the stabilization of
the shoreline located at 15 Broad Reach Road, Chebeague Island, Maine (Map
107, Lot 059), consisting of a combination of riprap and vegetative plantings
along approximately three hundred and sixty (360) feet of shoreline;

b. Shoreland Zoning Application on behalf of Renee and Carlos Nottebohm for the
stabilization of the shoreline located at 32 Sandy Point Road, Chebeague Island,
Maine (Map 101, Lot 21C), consisting of a combination of riprap and vegetative
plantings along approximately three hundred (300) feet of shore-line; and

c. Zoning Ordinance Application for Site Plan Review on behalf of the Chebeague
Island Library and the Chebeague Island Hall Community Center for a one story,
approximately 22 foot by 32 foot addition to the southwest end of the existing
library located at 247 South Road, Chebeague Island, Maine (Map 103, Lot 72).

2) The board opened the hearing on the Legg application for the stabilization of the
shoreline located at 15 Broad Reach Road. Tim Forrester of Flycatcher, LLC presented
the application, and the Planning Board asked questions of Forrester. Code Enforcement
Officer Paul Demers clarified that the list of abutters was updated to include abutters
within 1,500 feet of the subject property and that notice was provided to abutters within
1,500 feet of the subject properties for both the Legg and Nottebohm properties.
Members of the public then had the opportunity to offer comments on the application.
Donna Damon raised questions on the town ownership of intertidal land and other
property line questions. Eliza Adams asked about using coir logs instead of rip rap.
Forrester responded to the comments, indicating that coir logs were incorporated into the
ends of the rip rap to reduce end effect erosion.

The public hearing was closed and the board began its deliberations. The CEO suggested
that the board add a condition that the applicants notify the town of their project
schedules and involve the town actively in planning, and also noted that the board could
consider a peer construction review. The board agreed to add a pre-construction meeting
but rejected the suggestion of an outside construction consultant to review the project as
the town had never required an external consultant in the past and, given the extensive
review by the State Department of Environmental Protection, hiring an independent
consultant to review the project did not seem appropriate or in keeping with long-
standing practice. The board reviewed the project, made findings of fact and voted to
approve the project on the condition that applicant have a physical meeting with the CEO



3)

in advance of any construction activities to review project scheduling and planning, with
a formal written decision of the findings of fact and conclusions of law to be issued at a
later date.

The board opened hearing on the Nottebohm application for the stabilization of the
shoreline located at 32 Sandy Point Road. Tim Forrester of Flycatcher, LLC presented
the application, and the Planning Board asked questions of Forrester. Members of the
public then had the opportunity to offer comments on the application. Leila Bisharat
asked for clarification regarding the impact of erosion, expressing concern about
unexpected consequences of the project. Richard Hackel, abutter to the applicants’ parcel,
noted that he would have given the applicants land onto which the applicants could
relocate their house if he had been asked to, asked about the tapering of the stabilization
project and about potential magnification of the energy at the edges of the project. Jenny
Hackel, abutter to the applicants’ parcel, asked whether removing trees will have an
impact on the stability of the bank. Carol White noted a number of concerns with the
project, including the impact of rip-rap structures in a coastal barrier resource area,
provided copies of communications from Pete Slovenski from the Maine Geological
Survey regarding the project from dates prior to the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection (“MDEP”) decision approving the project, noted the failure of the wall at the
hook in a coastal barrier resource area, noted that alternatives to the shoreline
stabilization project approved by MDEP had been suggested by the Maine Geological
Service (“MGS”), that she disagreed with many of the findings of the MDEP decision
approving the project, and suggested the Planning Board get another technical opinion.
Lynn Mills asked if vegetation and coir logs could be used instead of rip-rap. Donna
Damon expressed confusion, noting that the MDEP had already signed off on the project
and noted that she thought the MDEP review process was the appropriate venue to raise
the concerns being aired. Herb Maine commented that he thought MDEP ignored other
state agencies in the review process, noted that Chebeague didn’t have a reasonable way
to run a peer review of the MDEP decision, and indicated that although he wasn’t a
professional engineer, he thought professional engineering standards should be applied
and asked if there was an expected life span. Jackie Trask asked about modifications
from the earlier plans for the project.

Forrester responded to the comments, noting that he had been building similar projects
for 25 years and has not yet had any fail, that relocating the house was problematic
because, among other things, it was built on a slab and thus not easily lifted, and in
addition, was a large and complex structure. Regarding the wave energy at the edges of
the project, Forrester noted that the project was modified in response to suggestions by a
MGS and the project structure now ends 50 feet from the dunes and further than that from
the abutting property edge, and that current standards to avoid end effect erosion
standards required much less of a setback from the property edge to avoid potential
impacts on neighboring property. Regarding tree removal, Forrester noted that there had
been additional erosion in the time it has taken to move this project forward and there are
trees leaning and pulling the bank down that need to be removed as part of the effort to
stabilize the bank. Forrester also noted that the hook was a very different situation from
the applicants’ property, that the dune was located sufficiently far from the proposed
structure to avoid problems, and that MDEP had incorporated many of MGS’s comments
into the final approval as modifications to the original proposed stabilization structure.
Forrester also noted that the designed lifespan the project was 20 to 30 years.

The public hearing was closed and the board began its deliberations. The board rejected



4)

)

the suggestion of an outside construction consultant to review the project as the town had
never required an external consultant in the past and, given the extensive review by
MDERP, hiring an independent consultant to review the project did not seem appropriate
or in keeping with long-standing practice. The board reviewed the project, made findings
of fact and voted to approve the project on the condition that applicants have a physical
meeting with the CEO in advance of any construction activities to review project
scheduling and planning, with a formal written approval of the findings of fact and
conclusions of law to be issued at a later date.

The board opened the hearing on the Chebeague Island Library/Chebeague Island Hall
Community Center application for a one-story room addition to the library. Will Hopkins,
member of the board of the library, presented the application and the planning board
asked questions of Hopkins. The applicant clarified that the exterior door located in the
proposed addition and depicted on the Proposed Ground Floor Plan in the materials
submitted with the application was not an egress door, would have a 42 inch high guard
rail installed to prevent use and comply with code, and was placed in that location in the
event the Town of Chebeague setback requirements are modified so as to permit a deck
in the future. The planning board also raised concerns regarding the parking plan,
specifically that the plan presented did not seem to have a way for two parking spaces to
turn around to exit the parking area and would require that the car back out onto South
Road to exit. Members of the public then had the opportunity to offer comments on the
application. Michael Grude said that he often parked in the lot to use the library’s Internet
service and so he didn’t think that additional parking would be needed for the addition.
Donna Damon spoke in support of the project as a close neighbor to the project. Kel
Haney spoke in support of the project and said that many people live close enough to
walk or bike and she did not believe parking would be an issue.

The public hearing was closed and the board began its deliberations, although it had to
reopen the public hearing and take additional testimony from Hopkins, and provided an
opportunity to comment, regarding utility service to the project addition. The board
reviewed the project, made findings of fact and voted to approve the project on the
condition that (1) the CEO first approve of a plan to be submitted by the applicant to the
CEO that demonstrates that the parking lot as modified will have sufficient parking
spaces with safe egress that will not require any vehicle to back out of the lot to enter
South Road from the lot; and (2) to the extent the applicant wishes to add any additional
lighting, the CEO first approve of any additional proposed lighting in a plan to be
submitted by the applicant to the CEO that demonstrates compliance with Section
206.8(Q).

Adjournment - The Planning Board unanimously voted to adjourn the meeting at 9:00
p.m.



